Albert H. Buser Called
Lutheran Families for
Church Organization

Early in 1897, Albert H. Buser, home. He would build a fire in
a member of Grace Lutheran|the sfove, sweep and dust the
church /in St. Louis, who bad|hall, and return home for more
moved his family to Webster (wood so that the hall would be
Groves, was inspired to call to-|warm before church time.
gether the few Lutheran families| The families who made up this
living in the neighborhood for carly congregation are names fa-
the purpose of organizing a new |miliar to ‘many . Webster Groves
Lutheran congregation in the city [residents today—Buser, Rasmus<
of Webster Groves. The first|sen Jensen, Larsen, Grauer, Lau-
service was held Sunday, March 14, |enborg, and Wolfram.

1867, and the Rev. M. S. Sommer, 1900, the city of Webster
then pastor of Grace Lutheran|c, oves had grown to a population
church, conducted the serviee and lof1,895. The congregation at that
he |preached from the text: I John o ™ 0o0s known as the Old
ry,|3:4, “And this is the victory that|orohard Lutheran church. Some
A,,‘o\'ercgmclh the world, éven our years later, at the suggestion of
1bt | THIth [one of the founders of the con-
by| The families gatiiered for that|gregation, Peter Rasmussen, the
th- first service at the Buser home, |name of Christ Evangelical Luth-
se- 787 Big Bend road, and went in eran Church of Webster Groves

a body to the meeting place which was adopted.

1d- was in the Royal Arcanum Lodge| The first contirmation class had
ied hall, situated on the second floor 'one member, Lillian Lauenborg
ow above a grocery store, at the The second class, in 1903, had
»rs south-cast corner of Big Bend road four members, Edna and Florence
wi-'and Log Cabin lane. Arrange- Buser, Palm Lauenborg, and Ella
ce- ments were made to continue the Wolfram. The third confirmation
ec- Sunday services at this location, |class, in 1904, two members, Lilli-
er, /and the late Dr. Frederick Bente,'an and Ferdenand Larsen. The
- a professor at Concordia u-mlnnry,ifouny. class, in 1906, five mem
as was called to serve the congrega- bers, Lillian Buser, Flora Larsen.
he [tion as its first pastor, in addition |Mary and Martin Rasmussen, and
en(to continuing his duties at the |Helena Wolfram.

iwmmlry From the Royal Arcanum hall
he| At times students from the [the congregation moved to tem-
ch {seminary would assist Professor porary quarters nearby, called the
he |Bente in conducting services. An |Village hall, and then' to the|
nn |early member of the congregation |Suburban School of Music hall at |
is. 'recalls that Buser would reach [Summit and Newport avenues
Iis |the Lodge hall at 6 am. on Sun.|Several years later the congrega
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a building of its own, and a small

Dh" ‘dly, carrying fire wood from \llon had grown sufficiently to own
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frame church edifice at 667 Ata
lanta avenue was purchased. Ded
ication services were held on June
27, 1909

The altar in the church on At
alanta avenue was made by one
of the members from an old of
fice desk in reverse. The name

plaque on the exterior was artis

tically decorated and painted by
Miss Palm Lavenborg, one of the
members of the sccond confir
mation class

An carly roster of the church,
some time prior to 1910, lists 52
members A Ladies’ Aid sociely
was organized with Mrs. Busor as
president and the pastor’'s wife
Mrs. Bente, as Treasnrer. A roster
of the congiegation in December,
1914, lists 62 communicant mem
bers

At this period oi its develop
ment the congregation felt the
need for a full-time resident pas
tor and in tke spring of 1915, the
Reverend George Luecke, Jr., was
called upon his gradvation from
Cbncordia seminary. Under Pas

tor Luvecke's youthful and vigorous
leadership the congregation grew
rapidly and within five years felt
the nced for a larger and more
suitable building In the
1920, when the population of Web
ster Groves had grown to 10,500,
the congregation puwrchased the
large lot at the south-cast corner

of Lockwood and Selma avenues
adjoining the new  high  school
site.  The wisdom and forcsight
of the congregation in selecting
this site is demonstrated by the
fact that they lected  a  site
which is today at the center of
population of the ci'y

In tke year .J21, the present
constituticn  of the congregation
was adopted and filed under
state law The constitution lists
the following members as the
first board of directors: Theo. J
Wolfram, John H. Steinmeyer, H
W. Sudfeld, Robert C. Napier
Arthur O. Leutheusser, Fred P
Straub, and William J. Jaeger. It
was this group of men who led

he congregatien in planning for a

new church struciure

The building « nittce censi.
ted of Mason Miller, A. O. Leut
heusser, William Ruminel, Joln

Waldeck, and Theodore J
Wolfram. An architect was selec
ted, plans were drawn. funds werc
raised, and the cornerstone for
the new building was laid on
August 26, 1923. The

LUTHERAN CHURCH
and Selma

year |

was completed in 1924 at a cost
of $30 thousand and the 125 mem-
vers of the congregation were
Lappy in their new chapel with
its kitchen, basement assembly |
room, and other facilities which |
they had not enjoyed in the for- |
mer church property

The nave seated about 150 per-

comfortably and was ade-
to care for the congrega- |
nceds for several ycars, |

sons
ate
iion’s

It is inlcresting to note that
‘Le siructure was referred to as |
the “chapel” and was purposely |
lccated on the southern porticn
of the lot with the thought in |
nind that at some later date a!
and more imposing church |
ttucture  would be erected on |
the northern portion of the lot
Witlin a remarkably” few years
‘he cenzregation was able {o pay
ft all indcbledness on the new |

larger

trucoure.  During this period the |
zeal and gencrosily of Robert C. |
Napier was a great blessing to
lhe congregalion

By the carly 1850's it became
apparent te the growing congre |
avion (nat before too many years |
a larger church structure would |
be needed. A building fund was
started, and even during the de-

wession years of the '30's accum
ulations were added to the fund

The Svnday-school had grown
apace, and the primary depart- |
ment, under the devoted and faith- |
ful leadership of Mrs. J. S. Lake, |
tound 1t expedient to secure the
loan of classroom space in the
vlyoimn th  school  building
y 1331, it becane necessaly to |
hold two services every Sunday
mornin to accommodate

those
ho came to worship. |
In 1940, with Herman Gall as
president of the board, the plans
f the congregation for expansion
began 1o crysialize Theodore
steinmeyer was chosen as archi
teet and sketch plans for additions
ind new buildings were studied
Finally arrangements were made
to secll the entire church property
‘o the Webster Groves school
heard present lot at the
outh-west of Lockwood
sed
the
niregation was
0 vccupy the chapel while
and huilding the new
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the new building was broken in
August, 1941, the cornerstene was | \iller =
laid on Novemter 2, 1941, and () ace ceret
dedication services were held the Ncumann
week of Noverber 8 to November | Franke M‘
15, 1942. The building stands to- Theodote J
day as the fiuiticn of the work A
of many, both living znd dead. | PRI
who served throush the years in vy
Christ church, to the Gloy of God. |:'Y “¢ ;"
The members of the present | Ri€ ‘{ lerzog
board of directors are: Theodore | PTIM<M2N

building
ki

I. Herzog, president

reasurer
Strippgen,

Wolfram

Luecke

and Bernkard Keiser




